City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SCL-464
Addendum 

Updated 11/21/13

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal #SCL-464, titled Integrated Learning & Talent Management System   released on 11/07/13.  The due date and time for responses remains as 12/04/13 (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders/proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	11/18/13
	11/19/13
	Per the description on page 8 of the RFP, if the prime contractor will be subcontracting all services in Seattle, and if there is no further physical nexus, will the prime contractor be required to obtain a Seattle Business license? 


	Both the prime and subcontractor will need to obtain a Seattle Business License.  Even though the prime has no physical nexus, their subcontractor would if work is being performed by them on-site.
For questions, contract Revenue & Consumer Affairs shown on Line 7. Under Section #4/
	

	2
	11/18/13
	11/19/13
	Due to the complexity of the Statement of Work, and with the Thanksgiving holiday coming up, would you consider extending the due date of the RFP?


	Due to schedule constraints, the City will not be extending the due date for proposals.


	

	3
	
	
	
	
	The recording of the pre-proposal conference held 11/13/13 embedded below:
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	4
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Given the sophisticated nature and of substantial quantity of SCL’s RFP requirements, as well as the work disruption of the Thanksgiving holiday and employee vacations typically scheduled during that time, would SCL please extend the RFP due date an additional two weeks?
	Due to schedule constraints, the City will not be extending the due date for proposals.


	

	5
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	The general description in Section 1.1 Purpose and the Software Scope in Section 1.4 of the RFP state that the LTMS will be used to manage employee recruitment and on boarding. However, the requirements matrices do not include any requirements for these areas, and the RFP later refers to the City’s use of NeoGov for recruiting. Can SLC please clarify this aspect of the RFP?


	The system will be used to support the onboarding process through functionality identified in the functional requirements—for example, to inventory and assess skills and skill gaps and to develop and administer training plans , .  But there are no functional requirements unique to onboarding.  In the short term the City is not expecting to utilize the recruiting functionality of the LTMS and therefore that has not been included in the requirements. Neogov will continue to be used by the City for recruiting and an interface is not required.  
	

	6
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Within the LTMS Functional Requirements spreadsheet the Overview tab contains a blank column labeled “Content or Purpose”. Are vendors expected to provide responses or comments to these items? 

	No responses are required to these items.
	

	7
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	In the LTMS Functional Requirements spreadsheet, Competency Management sheet, items CM-15 and CM-51 are virtually identical. However CM-15 is designated as Highly Preferred and CM-51 is designated as Mandatory. Can one item be removed, and which is the proper designation for this requirement?

	The two requirements are identical.  CM-51 is included in the mandatory requirements in section 3 of the RFP.  Please ignore requirement CM-15.
	Section 8.8 Functional Requirements spreadsheet, “Competency Management” Sheet, delete requirement CM-15 .

	8
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	In the LTMS Functional Requirements spreadsheet, Competency Management sheet, items CM-15, CM-37 and CM-51 refer to workforce planning processes. However, workforce planning is a large topic that could typically encompass another complete sheet, but it is not mentioned elsewhere and its mention appears to be out of context with the balance of the RFP and requirements. Can the reference to workforce planning be removed from these requirements, or can SCL specify that the workforce planning processes referenced in those items lie outside the scope of the LTMS?

	Workforce planning is out of scope for this RFP.
	

	9
	11/13/18

(pre-proposal conference)
	11/21/13
	There seems to be a discrepancy in the wording of Technical Requirement S-1 in the Security tab of the Technical Requirements document, and on page 3 of the Mandatory Functional and Technical Requirements document, and on page 7, Section 3 of the RFP.
	
	Technical Requirement S-1, which appears in the Security tab of the Technical Requirements document, and on page 3 of the Mandatory Functional and Technical Requirements document, and on page 7, Section 3 of the RFP, should read in all locations:
“Vendor has comprehensive security model that meets requirements of ISO27001 and adheres to practices and guidelines of ISO27002 through ISO2704 & ISO27010.”

	10
	11/13/18

(pre-proposal conference)
	11/21/13
	There is likewise a discrepancy in the wording of Technical Requirement S-2 in the Security tab of the Technical Requirements document, and on page 3 of the Mandatory Functional and Technical Requirements document, and on page 8, Section 3 of the RFP.
	
	Technical Requirement S-2, which appears in the Security tab of the Technical Requirements document, and on page 3 of the Mandatory Functional and Technical Requirements document, and on page 8, Section 3 of the RFP, should read in all locations:
“Vendor can supply attestation or certification that the system has been tested for common web application security vulnerabilities as articulated by the "OWASP Top-10" (www.owasp.org), and has been found to be free of significant security  defects.”

	11
	11/13/18

(pre-proposal conference)
	11/21/13
	Is there any utilization of single sign-on at City Light?
	Currently Seattle City Light does utilize single sign on capability for some but not all applications. SCL uses Oracle Access Manager for single sign on. Our future direction is to use the Oracle Identity Management suite of products. If this application is used by multiple City departments then there is additional complexity involved. Each major City Department maintains its own active directory and may have different approaches for implementing single sign on capability. In general, a city employee only resides in one Microsoft Active directory.

Single sign-on is not a high priority for this procurement.   Note this requirement has a priority of “preferred” vs. “highly preferred”.  There are no immediate plans to implement single sign-on for this application with other City Light applications.   City Light is interested in hearing about capabilities of the vendor’s proposed solution to support implementing single sign-on in the future. 
	

	12
	11/13/18

(pre-proposal conference)
	11/21/13
	Where are changes to employee positions and roles reported from?
	Changes to employee positions and roles are reported from the EV5 HRIS system. EV5 is the system utilized for employee information including position, classification, department, and training records.  It is a proprietary version of PeopleSoft owned and adapted by ADP.
	

	13
	11/13/18

(pre-proposal conference)
	11/21/13
	Where is existing training data located? What format is it in, and how much of it is there?
	Existing training records are in the EV5 system.  There is approximately 15 years of training history which could mean up to 100,000 training records.

	

	14
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	In the Management Response doc, on page 16, there is no project role. Is there another position that needs a name and references? 


	This page (p. 16) was provided in case the vendor wishes to identify additional key staff playing a significant role in the project.  Vendors may choose to leave it blank, or to complete it, or even to copy it and create still more pages, depending on the number of key project team members the vendor wishes to present.  As the instructions indicate, “You may change these role titles if appropriate.  Add additional tables as needed.”

	

	15
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Please re-issue the Excel Pricing Document; the lines seem to become all jumbled.


	The Pricing Proposal is embedded below.
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	16
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Please provide the number of users to be priced for the Integrated Learning and Talent solution?


	The assumption for pricing in this RFP is 1800 users.  
	

	17
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Please provide the number of users to be priced for the Integrated Learning and Talent solution? 1,800 Users -Learning System (Will external users (i.e. vendors, contractors, students, etc.) be supported by the LMS and if so, how many and what type?)
-1,800 Users - Hiring System
-1,800 Users - Performance Management System
-1,800 Users - 360 Feedback System
-1,800 Users - Succession Planning System
-1,800 Users - Compensation Planning System

	Hiring system and compensation planning are out of scope.   The assumption for pricing in this RFP is 1800 users for all modules in scope.  
	

	18
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	What are you trying to accomplish by implementing these modules?


	Please refer to the Purpose and Background sections of the RFP.  In addition see below description of City Light’s current challenges and how the LTMS system will support resolving them.
A large number of City Light's employees who perform critical, highly specialized functions are eligible to retire in the next five years, leaving a wide gap in institutional knowledge that could have serious impacts to customers, including the ability to deliver reliable power. 

In addition, new technologies such as automated meter infrastructure, and transmission and distribution automation, require all utilities to invest in training and developing employees to have the skill set to work on these systems.

Having a system that is able to track needed skills and identify gaps is essential to developing a workforce that will be able to meet City Light’s future business needs.  In addition it is critical to ensure that training budgets are utilized for areas where they will have the most impact.
	

	19
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	What are you currently using today for these modules?


	Currently the only system in use is the EV5 HRIS system that tracks employee training and performance review dates.  There is no automated system for performance reviews, performance management or succession planning.
	

	20
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Is cloud-based or on-premise preferred?


	This RFP is for a cloud based system.  


	

	21
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	Please identify the module(s) and the time frame for each module to be implemented.

-Learning System
-Hiring System
-Performance Management System
-360 Feedback System
-Succession Planning System
-Compensation Planning System
 


	City Light would like to have the system implemented as soon as possible but we are looking to the vendors to recommend sequencing and timeframe based on their experience.
	

	22
	11/19/13
	11/21/13
	How will cost play a role in the decision factor?


	Cost is allocated 100 points out of 1000, so it is 10% of the points.  The five year cost of each vendor will be compared to determine each vendor’s number of points, up to 100, for cost.
	

	23
	
	
	
	
	RFP Face Page under Solicitation Schedule,, change the date for the Announcement of Apparent Successful Proposer from 3/04/13 to 3/14/13



	24
	
	
	
	
	Replace Required Interfaces 1.7, and Data Migration 1.8 with the document below.


[image: image3.emf]1.7 Required  Interfaces_1.8 Data Migration (revised).doc







Page 1 of 9

Pricing Proposal

		PRICING PROPOSAL



		Instructions to Vendor:

		1		Price Summary shall be a roll-up of all subsequent Price Detail sections.  Price Summary shall represent the full price of implementation and ownership over the first seven years.

		2		Price Detail sections shall include unit pricing and extensions as applicable. In case of discrepancy between the two, the unit price(s) shall govern.

		3		Price Detail sections must include all cost items needed to implement Vendor's proposal as represented in Vendor's response to Functional and Technical requirements and Management proposal.  Please add additional items as needed.

		4		Prices shall not include Washington State Sales or Local Retail Tax.

		5		Proposer shall quote prices with freight prepaid and allowed.  Proposer shall quote prices Free On Board (FOB) Destination.

		6		All prices should be in US dollars.

		7		Please indicate payment terms:  Prompt Payment Discount ___% ___ days (not less than 30 days);  Net ___ days (not less than 30 days).  Pricing proposal shall not reflect any such discounts.



		8		The City of Seattle has entered into Interlocal Purchase Agreements with other governmental agencies pursuant to RCW 39.34.  

				The seller agrees to sell additional items at the bid price, terms and conditions to other governmental agencies.  The City of 

				Seattle accepts no responsibility for the payment of the purchase price by other governmental agencies.

				         YES  ______     NO  _______



				If yes, prices are good until (  ) further notice or (  ) _________ (date).



		PRICE SUMMARY 

		ITEM				PHASE		 		TOTAL COST		COST 
Year 1		COST
Year 2		COST
Year 3		COST
Year 4		COST
Year 5

		a		System Prices		Implementation				$0		 

		b		Services Prices		Implementation				$0

		c 		Training Prices		Implementation				$0

		d		Maintenance and License Prices		Annual				$0

		e		Other Prices		Implementation/ Annual				$0

				TOTAL						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0





				A. SYSTEM PRICES DETAIL

				List the one-time procurement price, if any, by module of each component of the Vendor's proposed software solution. Include all third party software required to implement the Vendor's proposed solution.

				Item: Module/Version#		Unit Price		Quantity		Total Price		Description

										0

										0

										0

										0

										0

				Third Party Products:

										0

										0

				TOTAL						$   - 0		Reflected in Line "a" of Price Summary.





				B. SERVICES PRICE DETAIL 

				List the complete fixed price including travel and other expenses for the Vendor's proposed services other than training.  Include all services and activities required to implement the Vendor's proposed solution. "Blended Rate" is the Total Price divided by the total hours for that service.

				Item		Hours		Blended Unit Price*		Total Price		Notes

				Project Management

				Installation Assistance

				Requirements Refinement and Software Design/Configuration

				Data Conversion

				Interface Development

				Testing

				Cutover Support

				Other: (Specify)

				TOTAL		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Reflected in Line "b" of Price Summary.

				*Blended rate is the Vendor's averaged hourly rate for this service.



				C. TRAINING PRICE DETAIL 

				Detail all classes available including different levels of user training and administrator training if available.  Price will include travel and other expenses associated with training.

				Item: Specify Classes		# Students		Class Hours		Total Price		Notes

				End User Training		 



				Technical Training

						 

				Administrator Training



				TOTAL						$   - 0		Reflected in Line "c" of Price Summary.



				D. RECURRING COSTS PRICE DETAIL

				Vendor must propose a vendor-hosted "cloud" based solution.  Assume 1800 users.  Note: Specify Maintenance Support only if it is not already included in the annual license/use fee.

				Item		Year 1		Year 2		Year 3		Year 4		Year 5				Notes

				License/Use Fees

				Maintenance Support

				Other

				Third Party Products:

				License/Use Fees

				Maintenance Support

				Other

				TOTAL		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Reflected in Line "d" of Price Summary.



				E. OTHER PRICES DETAIL

				In the table below, list any system or technical (e.g., database, report writer) software that is not included in the standard configuration, but  is required to run the proposed solution and you are NOT including in your cost proposal.Please document any price information not covered in the tables above for any products or services required to implement Vendor's proposal. Please include prices of one-time and recurring costs.

				Item		Year 1		Year 2		Year 3		Year 4		Year 5				Notes







				TOTAL		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Reflected in Line "e" of Price Summary.



				F. PRICES OF ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

				Please document any price information for additional, optional products or services recommended in your proposal that the City, at its option, may consider acquiring. Please include prices of both one-time and recurring costs.

				Item		Year 1		Year 2		Year 3		Year 4		Year 5				Notes







				TOTAL		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0



				G. PROJECT RESOURCES REQUIRED FROM THE CITY OF SEATTLE

				Based on experience with projects of this size and scope, please describe the level of staffing support required of the City for the implementation of your proposal.



				Type of Resource				Role/Activities				Required Skills				Total Project Hours				Notes





















				VENDOR NAME:___________________________________________________________



				AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:________________________________________________



				PRINTED NAME:___________________________________________________



				DATE:____________________
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1.7  Interfaces


Proposers should evaluate the following list of minimally required interfaces. Proposer’s cost proposal must include developing and implementing all of the following interfaces.  


Required Interfaces

		Vendor /
Application Name

		Direction 

(relative to LTMS)

		Interface Description 



		ADP EV5

		Inbound

		· Changes to employee positions/roles

· New employees


· Terminations


· Retirements



		

		Outbound

		· Training History

· Performance Review Dates



		MS Outlook 2010

		Inbound

		· Calendar schedules



		

		Outbound

		· Class appointments

· Confirmation emails





        1.8  Data Migration


For purposes of determining level of effort for data conversion, Proposers should assume City Light wishes at a minimum to migrate the data indicated in the following table.

Data Migration

		Source System

		Data Category

		Data Elements 



		ADP EV5

		Employee

		· Name


· Number


· Classification


· Position


· Department



		ADP EV5

		Employee Training History

		· Course


· Start date


· Completion date


· Completion status


· Certification



		ADP EV5

		Performance Reviews

		· Performance review dates
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